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2015...The Year in Highlights

Misssion Statement

“

Our purpose is to provide ﬁrst class

facilities and services by delivering the best
standards, offering warm, friendly hospitality
and ensuring the highest levels of customer
satisfaction with the aim of diversifying
the group’s activities and expanding its
portfolio.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

”

5

Board of Directors

Farouk Yousuf Almoayyed
Chairman of the Board

6

GULF HOTELS GROUP B.S.C.

Mohamed Husain Yateem

Fawzi Ahmed Kanoo

Khalid Mohamed Kanoo

Chairman Board Executive Committee

Director

Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Maher Salman AlMusallam

Mohamed Jassim Buzizi

Director

Director
& Advisor to the Chairman
for International Relations

Jassim Hasan Abdulaal

Aqeel Raees

Chairman Board Audit Committee

Chief Executive Officer
Board Member

7

Chairman’s Report
MARKET TREND AND
COMPARATIVE PERFORMANCE
Trading conditions in the hospitality
industry in 2015 were particularly difficult
as the market experienced a drop in both
occupancy levels and room rates, which
was compounded by an over-supply of
rooms due to new hotels opening during
the year and of refurbishment programs
which reduced the available for sale
inventory.
The retail sector however continued its
strong results, outperforming 2014.
Results were further negatively affected
by impairment losses on share portfolios
and investments.
Gulf Hotel
Despite increased competition from a
number of new hotel openings in 2015,
the Gulf Hotel continues to lead the 5
star market and achieved an actual share
3.2% above its fair market share. Rooms
sold 70,050 for the year which was well
ahead of the nearest competition.
The Hotel’s F&B outlets, which once
again enjoyed numerous nominations
and awards during 2015, continued
to play a leading role in Bahrain’s ever
expanding dining market. The newly
opened ‘Rasoi by Vineet’ Restaurant
swept the board of awards as best Indian
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“On behalf of the Board of
Directors, I have the pleasure in
submitting the Annual Report
and Financial Statements of Gulf
Hotels Group BSC for the year
ended 31st December 2015.”

Restaurant in Bahrain and enjoyed a
very successful debut year. The Hotel’s
F&B operation served close to 460,000
covers during the year which was by far
the highest in the 5-star market.
The Gulf Convention Centre’s revenues
continue to be affected by the limited
number of international conferences,
however plans are underway to
refurbish the venue and expand the
current facilities in order to meet future
anticipated demand.

Gulf Brands International
GHG’s retail business continued to produce
strong results on par with 2014 performance.
Ocean Paradise Resort, Zanzibar
GHG is both a shareholder and the operator of
this 100 room, African themed resort on the
North East Coast of Zanzibar.
The resort enjoyed stable occupancies for most
of the year although Q4 was negatively affected
by elections which greatly reduced visitors to the
island during October.

During 2015, the Hotel completed the
refurbishment of the Awal Ballroom
and added the Oak Lounge to its list of
already extensive F&B outlets.

The K Hotel
The 237 bedroom, 4-star deluxe Hotel is owned
by Mokan WLL and operated by Gulf Hotels
Group.

Gulf Executive Residence
For much of the year, GER operated
on a limited inventory due to the full
refurbishment of the apartment block
and occupancy levels were affected as
a result. However the feedback on the
refurbishment has been very positive and
business as we move into 2016 looks
very encouraging.

The K Hotel cemented its position as the leading
4 star hotel in Bahrain, recording high occupancy
levels and a strong average rate, resulting in a Net
Operating Profit that exceeded 2014.

Gulf Executive Offices
Due to the highly competitive nature
of the office rental market, occupancy
fell close to 60% in the GEO, which
negatively affected figures.

Asdal Gulf Inn
The 89 bedroom, 4 star deluxe property, located
in the Seef district, owned by the Asdal Group and
operated by Gulf Hotels Group on a management
contract, opened its doors for business on the
10th December 2015.
Gulf Hotel Laundry Services
The commercial laundry operation, opened
in early 2014, has now established itself and
has been successful in acquiring a number of
prestigious contracts.

Bahrain Family Leisure Company
The Gulf Hotels Group holds a 28.06%
stake in BFLC, who operate a number of
restaurants in Bahrain. The company’s
established
outlets,
Bennigan’s
and
Cucina Italiana, continue to improve their
performance and both received nominations
and awards in 2015, reflecting the efforts
of the management to continue to improve
these outlets.
RESULTS
• 2015 Gross Operating Revenues
of BD 32,370,415 compared to
BD 33,311,162 in 2014, a decrease
of 2.82 %.
• Profit from the operations for
the year 2015 of BD 13,095,285,
compared to BD 13,934,330 in
2014, a decrease of 6.02 %.
• Net Profit for the year 2015
of BD 9,197,089 compared to
BD 11,276,592 in 2014, a decrease
of 18.44 %.
PROPOSED APPROPRIATIONS
Taking into account the results achieved
by the company and keeping in mind
the company’s capital requirements for
continued upgrading of the facilities, your
Directors are pleased to recommend for
the approval of shareholders the following
appropriations:
• Dividend of 30 % (BD 5,208,163)
equal to BD 0.030 per share
• Directors fees of BD 205,000
• Allocations toward the provision for
Charity and Academic Research and
National Promotional Institutions
of BD 225,823 and BD 10,000
respectively.
FUTURE PROSPECTS
Construction of a new 3,100m² spa is
nearing completion and expected to open in
Q2 of 2016. In addition to the extensive spa
operation, the building will house a Ladies
Hair and Beauty Salon which will be operated
by a renowned Lebanese hairdresser.
The development of the Gulf Residence
Amwaj in conjunction with Lona Real Estate
is also nearing completion. The 173 unit, 4
star apartment-hotel is expected to open in
Q2 of 2016.
The development plans for the 224 room,
five star Gulf Hotel Business Bay in Dubai are
well underway and construction is expected
to start in Q4 of 2016 and take 2 years to
complete. This waterfront property, located
1.5km from Burj Khalifa and Dubai Mall will
meet the needs of both the business and
leisure market when it opens in late 2018.
Construction of the 108 unit Gulf Executive
Residence Juffair has commenced and is
expected to be completed in late 2017.
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Gulf Hotels Group has already purchased
Block 338 in Adliya Tourism Zone to develop
specialty restaurants from our bouquet of
successful restaurants.

SALIENT COMPANY INFORMATION

Registered Office

Gulf Hotels Group has submitted an initial
non-binding letter of intent to the Board
of Directors of Bahrain Tourism Company
B.S.C (BTC) indicating its potential interest
in acquiring 100 per cent of BTC’s shares
through a share-swap offer. The proposed
acquisition is expected to result in synergies
that would benefit the shareholders of GHG
and BTC.

Building No. 11,
Street No. 3801
Area No. 338
P.O. Box 580 Manama
Kingdom of Bahrain
Telephone : (973) 1774 6446
Fax : (973) 1774 6731
E-Mail : info@gulfhotelsgroup.com

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
On behalf of the shareholders of Gulf
Hotels Group BSC, the Board of Directors
would like to express our sincere gratitude
and appreciation to H.M. King Hamad
Bin Isa Al Khalifa, H.R.H. Prince Khalifa
Bin Salman Al Khalifa, the Prime Minister,
H.R.H. Prince Salman Bin Hamad Al Khalifa,
the Crown Prince and Commander in
Chief of the Bahrain Defence Force, the
Ministers, Undersecretaries, Directors and
Heads of Government Departments, for
the immeasurable interest, guidance and
encouragement accorded to Gulf Hotels
Group BSC. The same sentiments are also
extended to our clients, patrons and most
of all, the people of Bahrain. We thank
you for your continued support, trust and
confidence as we strive for progress.

BD 20,000,000

The success of the Company in a very
challenging year would not have been
possible without the hard work and
dedication of the Company’s management
and staff. The Board of Directors join me in
extending our appreciation to the entire Gulf
Hotels Group Management Team under the
guidance of Aqeel Raees (Chief Executive
Officer and Board Member), Garfield Jones
(Deputy Chief Executive Officer), Suresh
Surana (Chief Financial Officer) and the
remainder of the Gulf Hotels Group team.
We congratulate Rahim Abu Omar (General
Manager – Gulf Hotel), Ron Peters (General
Manager – Gulf Brands International), Gary
Teely (General Manager – Gulf Hotel Laundry
Services), Bernd Brandt (General Manager –
Ocean Paradise Resort), Volker Mandlowsky
(General Manager – The K Hotel), Hans
Radek (General Manager of the newly
opened Asdal Gulf Inn) and everyone who
has done their part in producing the best
possible results in challenging conditions.
We are privileged to have such a committed
and capable team and are confident that
this team will continue to produce the best
possible results in 2016.

Authorised Capital
Issued & Paid-up Capital
173,605,435 shares of BD 0.100 each

Affiliated Company
Gulf Air G. S. C.
Principal Bankers
National Bank of Bahrain
Bank of Bahrain & Kuwait
Ahli United Bank

Auditors
Ernst & Young (Statutory)
P.O. Box 140, Sheraton Tower
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain
BDO Jawad Habib (Internal)
P.O. Box 787
17th Floor, Diplomat Commercial
Office Tower
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain
KPMG (Certification)
P.O. Box 710
12th Floor, Fakhro Tower
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain

Share Registrars
KARVY
Office no. 74, Al Zamil Tower
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain

Principal Lawyers
Essa Ebrahim Mohammed Law Office
P.O. Box 11021
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain
Hassan Radhi & Associates
P.O. Box 5366
605 Diplomat Tower
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain
Nezar Raees & Associates
P.O. Box 1380
Gulf Executive Offices, Gulf Hotel
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain

Insurance Consultants
Marsh (Bahrain) Co.SPC.
P.O. Box 3237
1st Floor - Unitag House,
150 Government Avenue
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain
Farouk Yousuf Almoayyed
Chairman of the Board
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The Management

(Seated from left to right)

Suresh Surana - Chief Financial Officer
Garfield Jones - Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Aqeel Raees - Chief Executive Officer Board Member
Marc Reissinger - Director of Operations
(Standing from left to right)

Shuvendu Bakshi - Director of Projects
Mahmoud Abd El Monem - Director of Human Resources and Development
Rochelle Castillejos - Director of Revenue, Distribution and Optimization
Lloyd Fernandez - Technical Services Director
Shaheed Elaiwi - Director of Finance and Board Secretary
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The Management
(Seated from left to right)
Abdulla Siddiq Al Awadi - Hotel Manager

Rahim Abu Omar - General Manager

Ali Amralla - Director of Business Development and Strategy
(Standing from left to right)

Manoj Kumar - Chief Engineer
Carlo Cirone - Executive Chef
Afaf Auda - Rooms Division Manager
Jan Gutzmann - Director of Food and Beverage
Sanjiv Malhotra - Financial Controller
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The Management

(Seated from left to right)

Balakrishnan Malattiri - Financial Controller

Ron Peters - General Manager

Rajan Mathur - Imports & Supplies Manager
(Standing from left to right)

Travis Thompson - Director of Sales
Rodney Davies - Wine Manager
Andrea T. Lira - Brand Manager
John Paul Fox - eMarketing and Insight Manager
Jack Booth - Brand Manager
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The Management
(from left to right)

Bala Konuku - Executive Housekeeper
Abdul Hameed Noor - Financial Controller
Mohammed Qaed Askar - Chief Security

Volker Mandlowsky - General Manager
Mathias Narr - Director of Food & Beverage
Hussain Al Samahiji - Executive Assistant Manager
Yasas De Silva - Front Office Manager
Thomas Abraham - Chief Engineer
Sylvester Rozario - Executive Chef
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The Management

(from left to right)

Sumesh Sukumaran - Executive Chef
Satish Shetty - Information Systems Manager
Nitin Kadu - Financial Controller
Elzilea Botes - Guest Relation Manager

Bernd Brandt - General Manager

Nikolas Mantas - Food & Beverage Manager
Antonie Du Preez - Sales & Marketing Manager
T Anand Raj - Chief Engineer
Farid Mohammed Khamis - Assistant Front Office Manager
Leonard John - Personnel Manager
Jacob Lewa - Executive Housekeeper
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of Gulf Hotels Group B.S.C.
Report on the consolidated financial statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of Gulf Hotels Group B.S.C. (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 		
					 		
Board of Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, and for such internal control as the Board of
Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ responsibility				
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
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financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion				
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Group as of 31 December 2015, its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Report on other regulatory requirements			
As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law we
report that:							
				
a)
the Company has maintained proper accounting
records and the financial statements are in agreement
therewith; and						
				
b)
the financial information contained in the Report of the
Board of Directors is consistent with the consolidated
financial statements.					
We are not aware of any violations of the Bahrain
Commercial Companies Law, the Central Bank of Bahrain
(CBB) Rule Book (applicable provisions of Volume 6) and
CBB directives, regulations and associated resolutions, rules
and procedures of the Bahrain Bourse or the terms of the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association during
the year ended 31 December 2015 that might have had a
material adverse effect on the business of the Company
or on its financial position. Satisfactory explanations and
information have been provided to us by management in
response to all our requests.

Partner’s Registration No. 115
Ernst & Young
17 February 2016
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2015										
										
										
							

Note		

2015		

2014

BD		

BD

ASSETS										
Non-current assets										
Property, plant and equipment

7

45,223,142

40,944,134

Investment in an associate

8

1,821,415

2,120,508

Available-for-sale investments

9

7,093,780

7,187,279 		

		
54,138,337
50,251,921
Current assets					

				
Trading investments

10

570,350

595,219

Inventories

11

3,187,651

2,421,564

Trade and other receivables

12

2,600,631

3,038,081

Cash and bank balances

13

22,005,920

22,476,226

		
28,364,552
28,531,090
TOTAL ASSETS		
82,502,889
78,783,011
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital

14

17,360,544

16,533,851

Statutory reserve

15 (a)

8,680,272

8,266,926

General reserve

15 (b)

5,000,000

5,000,000

Available-for-sale investments reserve

15 (c)

3,298,835

3,157,241

16

5,208,163

6,613,540

Retained earnings		

32,663,056

29,914,169

Proposed dividend

Total equity		
72,210,870
69,485,727
Non-current liability					
Employees’ end of service benefits

17

1,985,766

2,005,723

18

8,306,253

7,291,561

Current liability
Trade and other payables

Total liabilities		
10,292,019
9,297,284
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		 82,502,889
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78,783,011

Farouk Yousuf Almoayyed
Chairman

Mohamed Hussain Yateem
Director
& Chairman, Executive Committee

Aqeel Raees
Chief Executive Officer
& Director

Suresh Surana
Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Income
For the Year Ended 31 December 2015										
										

		
2015
2014
Note

BD

BD

Gross operating revenue

19

32,370,415

33,311,162

Operating costs

20

(19,275,130)

(19,376,832)

GROSS OPERATING PROFIT		 13,095,285

13,934,330

Net investment income:
    Share of (loss) profit from an associate

8

(299,093)

555,021

Dividend income		

408,279

263,948

Gain on trading investments

10

19,955

290,135

Recovery of impaired unquoted investment

9

10,792

125,713

Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments

9

(235,093)

(151,560)

241,704

321,034

Interest income
Other income

21

633,051

781,498

Total income		 14,023,327

15,971,672

Depreciation

7

(3,054,959)

(2,833,692)

Charity reserve expense

18

(235,823)

(289,144)

General and administration expenses

22

(1,535,456)

(1,572,244)

(4,826,238)

(4,695,080)

Total expenses

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR		
9,197,089
11,276,592
Basic and diluted earnings per share (fils)

24

53

65

Dividend per share (in fils)

16

30

40

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended 31 December 2015										
										
		
2015
2014
BD
BD
Note
Net Profit for the year		

9,197,089

11,276,592

Other comprehensive income				
Net movement in fair valuation of available-for-sale investments
to be reclassified to consolidated statement
of income in subsequent years
9
141,594
543,297
Other comprehensive income for the year		
141,594
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR		
9,338,683

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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543,297
11,819,889

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 December 2015										
										

		
2015
2014
Note

BD

BD

OPERATING ACTIVITIES				
Profit for the year		
9,197,089
11,276,592
Adjustments for:				
Depreciation
7
3,054,959
2,833,692
Loss on property, plant and equipment written off		
5,588
Share of profit from an associate
8
299,093
(555,021)
Interest income		
(241,704)
(321,034)
Dividend income		
(408,279)
(263,948)
Gain on trading investments
10
(19,955)
(290,135)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale investments
9
235,093
151,560
   
(Reversal of) provision for doubtful debts - net
12
(6,606)
1,241
Provision for slow moving inventories - net
11
5,000
57,930
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
17
174,020
242,167
Operating profit before working capital changes		

12,288,710

13,138,632

(771,087)
406,502
815,158

536,537
(465,377)
870,452

12,739,283

14,080,244

Directors’ remuneration paid		
Donations paid
18
Employees’ end of service benefits paid
17

(255,000)
(70,194)
(193,977)

(230,000)
(60,340)
(60,151)

Net cash flows from operating activities		

12,220,112

13,729,753

Working capital changes:
Inventories		
Trade and other receivables		
Trade and other payables		
Net cash from operations

INVESTING ACTIVITIES				
Purchase of property, plant and equipment		
(6,764,335)
(7,128,015)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments
9
(2,354,941)
Net movement of cash held for investment trading
10
44,824
21,108
Proceeds from sale of trading investments
10
1,503,755
Interest income received		
279,258
364,814
Dividend income received		
408,279
263,948
Term deposits with orignal maturities of more than three months		
2,450,436
(211,413)
Net cash flows used in investing activities		

(3,581,538)

(7,540,744)

FINANCING ACTIVITY				
Dividends
16
(6,613,540)
(6,613,540)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 		

2,025,034
2,261,145

(424,531)
2,685,676

13

4,286,179

2,261,145

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

Non-cash items:			
(i)
Liabilities towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment to the extent of BD 1,582,027 (2014: BD 1,012,395 ) were not
settled as of the date of consolidated statement of financial position.			
(ii)
Interest income of BD 102,634 (2014: BD 140,188) which has been accrued but is not yet due has been excluded from the
movement of trade and other receivables.
(iii)
Unclaimed dividends pertaining to prior years amounting to BD 149,838 (2014: BD 194,742) has been excluded from the movement
of trade and other payables.
The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 31 December 2015										

					
					
		
Share
Statutory
General
		capital
reserve
reserve
Note

BD

BD

BD

Balance at 1 January 2015		

16,533,851

8,266,926

5,000,000

Profit for the year		

-

-

-

Other comprehensive income		

-

-

-

-

-

-   

-   

		
Total comprehensive income		

Bonus shares issued

16

-

826,693

Transfer to statutory reserve

Dividends paid

-   

16

-   

413,346

-   

-   

-   

										

					
Proposed cash dividend

16

-   

-   

-   

		
Balance at 31 December 2015		

17,360,544

8,680,272

5,000,000

		

						
Balance at 1 January 2014		

16,533,851

8,266,926

5,000,000

Profit for the year		

-

-

-

									
Other comprehensive income		

-

-

-

		

						
Total comprehensive income		

-

-

-

				
Dividends paid

16

-   

-   

-   

									
Proposed
   
cash dividend
16
  -

-   

-   

		
Balance at 31 December 2014		

16,533,851

		
The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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8,266,926

5,000,000

										

					
					

Availablefor-sale
investments
reserve

Proposed
dividend

Retained
eranings

Total

BD

BD

BD

BD

3,157,241

6,613,540

29,914,169

69,485,727

-

-

9,197,089

9,197,089

141,594

-

-

141,594
		

141,594

-

9,197,089

-   

-   

(826,693)

-  

-

-   

(413,346)

-  

-   

(6,613,540)

-   

9,338,683

(6,613,540)

										

					
-   

5,208,163

(5,208,163)

-      
		

3,298,835

5,208,163

32,663,056

72,210,870
		

						
2,613,944

6,613,540

25,251,117

64,279,378

-

-

11,276,592

11,276,592

									
543,297

-

-

543,297
		

						
543,297

-   

-

(6,613,540)

11,276,592

-   

11,819,889

(6,613,540)

									
-   

6,613,540

(6,613,540)

-      
		

3,157,241
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6,613,540

29,914,169

69,485,727
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
At 31 December 2015
1

GROUP INFORMATION			

Gulf Hotels Group B.S.C. (‘’the Company”) is a public joint stock company incorporated in the Kingdom of Bahrain and registered with
the Ministry of Industry and Commerce under commercial registration (CR) number 950.  The postal address of the Company’s registered
head office is at P O Box 580, Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain.				
			
The Group owns and operates the Gulf Hotel, Gulf Executive Residence, the Gulf Convention Centre, Gulf Executive Offices and Gulf
Brands International in the Kingdom of Bahrain and provides other catering facilities. It also provides management services to The K
Hotel, Gulf Court Manama, Asdal Gulf-inn Seef and Gulf Residence Amwaj, Kingdom of Bahrain, and to Ocean Paradise Resort, Zanzibar,
Republic of Tanzania.				
Information on the Group’s structure is provided below. Information on related party relationships of the Group is provided in note 26.
					
			
		
Ownership
Date of
Name of the subsidiary
interest
incorporation
Activities		
							
Gulf Hotels Management Company S.P.C.
100%
4 December 2002
Managing hotels and restaurants and providing
				
catering services for aircraft, ships, government
				
organisations and companies.		
							
Hospitality Resources S.P.C.
100%
12 August 2010
Import, export and sales of commercial and
				
household kitchen equipment and interior
				
designing contracts.
Gulf Hotel Laundry Services S.P.C.
100%
1 February 2014
Provision of automatic laundry services.
							
		
Ownership
Country of			
		
interest
incorporation
Activities
							
Name of associate							
						
Bahrain Family Leisure Company B.S.C.
28.06%
Kingdom of Bahrain
Primarily involved in operating restaurants,
				
providing services related to family
				
entertainment, supply of amusement related
				
equipment and investing in businesses with
				
similar objectives to those of BFLC.		
							
The consolidated financial statements of Gulf Hotels Group B.S.C. and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31
December 2015 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 17 February 2016.
2
BASIS OF PREPARATION				
		
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and in conformity with the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law,
applicable requirements of the Central Bank of Bahrain Rule Book and the rules and procedures of the Bahrain Bourse.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis, except for investments that have been measured at fair
value.		
		
The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Bahraini Dinars, being the functional and presentational currency of the
Group.					
3

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015
(collectively referred to as the “Group”). Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group
controls an investee if and only if the Group has:				
			
a)
Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee);
b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
c)
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
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Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:				
a)
b)
c)

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.				
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.				
			
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling interest
and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Any
investment retained is recognised at fair value.				
					
		
4
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 			
New and amended standards and interpretations effective as of 1 January 2015		
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the following amendments to IFRS
effective as of 1 January 2015:			
-

Improvements to IFRSs (2010-2012) Cycle: Amendments to IFRS 8 - Operating Segments, IAS 16 – Property, Plant and
Equipment, IAS 38 – Intangible Assets and IAS 24 – Related Party Disclosures; and
Improvements to IFRSs (2011-2013) Cycle: Amendments to IFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement and IAS 40 – Investment
Property.

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle
In the 2010-2012 annual improvements cycle, the IASB issued seven amendments to six standards. The Group has applied these
improvements for the first time in these consolidated financial statements. They include:
IFRS 8 Operating Segments
An entity must disclose the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria in paragraph 12 of IFRS 8,
including a brief description of operating segments that have been aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g., sales
and gross margins) used to assess whether the segments are ‘similar’; and
-

The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief
operating decision maker, similar to the required disclosure for segment liabilities.

The Group has not applied the aggregation criteria in IFRS 8.12. The Group has presented the reconciliation of segment assets to
total assets in previous periods and continues to disclose the same in note 29 in this period’s consolidated financial statements as the
reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of his decision making.			
				
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that the asset may be revalued by reference to observable
data by either adjusting the gross carrying amount of the asset to market value or by determining the market value of the carrying value
and adjusting the gross carrying amount proportionately so that the resulting carrying amount equals the market value. In addition, the
accumulated depreciation or amortisation is the difference between the gross and carrying amounts of the asset.
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity (an entity that provides key management personnel
services) is a related party subject to the related party disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required
to disclose the expenses incurred for management services. This amendment is not relevant for the Group as it does not receive any
management services from other entities.
Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle
These improvements are effective from 1 July 2014 and the Group has applied these amendments for the first time in these consolidated
financial statements. They include:
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can be applied not only to financial assets and
financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within the scope of IAS 39. This amendment is not relevant for the Group.		
					
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

23

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement (continued)
At 31 December 2015
4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New and amended standards and interpretations effective as of 1 January 2015 (continued)
IAS 40 Investment Property				
The description of ancillary services in IAS 40 differentiates between investment property and owner-occupied property (i.e., property,
plant and equipment). The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that IFRS 3, and not the description of ancillary services in IAS
40, is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of an asset or a business combination. This amendment is not relevant for the
Group.					
		
Several other new standards and amendments apply for the first time in 2015. However, they do not impact the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.				
		
Current versus non-current classification				
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on a current/non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when it is:
Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in a normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is classified as current when:
It is expected to be settled in a normal operating cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:
a)
In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
		
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
a)
b)
c)

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable; and
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is  unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of fair value hierarchy as explained above.			
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Property, plant and equipment				
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are
met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of income as incurred. Land and capital work in progress are
not depreciated.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment as follows:
-   Buildings on freehold land

- original structure
- subsequent improvements
		

40 years.
Over the remaining life of the buildings they relate to,
or earlier, as appropriate.		

-   Furniture, fittings and office equipment		

2 to 7 years.		

-   Plant, equipment and motor vehicles		

2 to 10 years.		

-   Soft operating equipment		
2 to 5 years.		
		
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of income when the
asset is derecognised.				
		
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Inventories				
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for on weighted average cost on a first in,
first out basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
Investment in an associate
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.
The considerations made in determining significant influence are similar to those necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.
The Group’s investment in associate is accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment in associate is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted
to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised nor individually tested for impairment.
The consolidated statement of income reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate. Any change in OCI of those
investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
associate.
The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made
to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.
After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in
associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. If
there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value, then recognises the loss as ‘Share of loss from an associate’ in the consolidated statement of income.
Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in consolidated statement of income.			
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
		
Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.
The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.
Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the consolidated statement of income
in expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or availablefor-sale investments, as appropriate. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Subsequent measurement		
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39. The Group has not designated any financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value with gains or losses recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
Loans and receivables
This category is the most relevant to the Group. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of income when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. Bad debts are
written off in the consolidated financial statements when identified.
This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to note 12.
Available-for-sale (AFS) investments
AFS financial investments include equity investments and debt securities. Equity investments classified as AFS are those that are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those that are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and that may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions. The Group’s AFS investments only includes equity investments.
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After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is recognised in other operating income, or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss is
reclassified to the consolidated statement of income and removed from the available-for-sale reserve.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and term deposits. For
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits with original
maturity of three months or less, net of restricted cash, if any.
Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a specific financial asset may be
impaired. If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Impairment is determined
as follows:
a)

For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between cost and fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of income;
b) For assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between carrying value and the present value of future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset; and
c)
For assets carried at amortised cost, impairment is the difference between carrying amount and the present value of future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.						
					
		
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way purchases) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.
The Group’s financial liabilities comprise of trade and other payables.
Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services
received, whether or not billed to the Group.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.				
Amortised cost of financial instruments
Amortised cost is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment and principal repayment or reduction.
The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate.
Derecognition of financial instruments
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:
the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or						
the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial instruments (continued)
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating
to any provision is presented in the consolidated statement of income net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money
is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
Employees’ end of service benefits
The Group makes contributions to the Social Insurance Organisation scheme for its national employees calculated as a percentage of the
employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.
The Group also provides for end of service benefits to its expatriate employees. The entitlement to these benefits is based upon the
employees’ final salaries and length of service. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Group assesses its revenue
arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as a principal or an agent. The Group has concluded that it is
acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements, has pricing latitude
and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
Rendering of services
Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised when services are performed, provided that the amount can be measured
reliably.
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.
Management fees
Management fees are recognised when earned as determined by the management agreement.
Rental income
The Group operates executive offices which are leased on a commercial basis. Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in other income as rental income.
Interest income
Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or liability.
Dividend income
Revenue is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the
dividend.
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Foreign currency transactions
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Bahraini Dinars (BD), which is also the Group’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency.
Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange ruling
at the reporting date.
All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of income.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined.

5

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of the issuance of Company’s financial statements are listed below. This listing is of
standards and interpretations issued, which the Company reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date. The Company intends to
adopt those standards (where applicable) when they become effective:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
The standard was initially effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015, however the final version of IFRS 9 issued by
the IASB in July 2014 moved the mandatory effective date to 1 January 2018.
Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
The amendments to IFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, in which the
activity of the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the relevant IFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest
in the same joint operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the
amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under common control of the same
ultimate controlling party.
The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any additional interests
in the same joint operation and are prospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption
permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group.
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
The standard permits an entity which is a first-time adopter of International Financial Reporting Standards to continue to account, with
some limited changes, for ‘regulatory deferral account balances’ in accordance with its previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,
both on initial adoption of IFRS and in subsequent financial statements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016).
		
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognising
revenue. The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS.
Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early adoption
permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date.
IFRS 16 Leases
The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has published a new standard, IFRS 16 ‘Leases’. The new standard brings most leases
on-balance sheet for lessees under a single model, eliminating the distinction between operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting
however remains largely unchanged and the distinction between operating and finance leases is retained. IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17
‘Leases’ and related interpretations and is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earlier adoption permitted if
IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ has also been applied. The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 and plans
to adopt the new standard on the required effective date.				
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STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from
operating a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result,
a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances
to amortise intangible assets. The amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with
early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group given that the Group has not used a
revenue-based method to depreciate its non-current assets.

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in
their separate financial statements. Entities already applying IFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial
statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of IFRS electing to use the equity method in its separate
financial statements, they will be required to apply this method from the date of transition to IFRS. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments will not have any impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual improvements to IFRSs (2012-2014) Cycle
These improvements are effective from 1 January 2016. The document contains amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS 7, IAS 19 and IAS 34.
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify, rather than significantly change, existing IAS 1 requirements. The
amendments clarify:
- The materiality requirements in IAS 1;
- That specific line items in the statement(s) of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the statement of financial
position may be disaggregated;
- That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial statements;
- That the share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must be
presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are presented in the statement of financial
position and the statement(s) of income and other comprehensive income. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group.
Other standards and interpretations that have been issued but not yet effective are not likely to have any significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in the period of their initial application.			
				
					
		
6
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have the most
significant effect in the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
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Classification of investments
The Group’s management decides on acquisition of an investment whether it should be classified as a trading investment or available-forsale. Classification of investments as trading investments depends on how management monitors the performance of these investments.
These investments have readily available reliable fair values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of the consolidated
statement of income in the consolidated financial statements. All other investments are classified as available-for-sale.
Impairment of quoted AFS equity investments
The Group’s management records impairment charges on quoted AFS equity investments when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below their cost. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgment. In making this
judgment, the Group evaluates, among other factors, historical share price movements and the duration (greater than 12 months) and
extent (30% or more) to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost. Impairment loss of quoted AFS equity investments
recorded in consolidated statement of income amounted to BD 235,093 as of 31 December 2015 (2014: BD 151,560) (see note 9).

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The directors determine the estimated useful lives of the Group’s property, plant and equipment for calculating depreciation. This estimate
is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset, physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence.
The directors review, on a yearly basis, the useful lives of property, plant and equipment. Future depreciation charges would be adjusted
when the directors believe the useful lives differ from previous estimates.

Impairment of trade receivables
An estimate of the collectible amount of trade receivables is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. For
individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but
which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the length of time past due, based on historical recovery
rates.
At the reporting date, gross trade receivables were BD 1,556,611 (2014: BD 2,064,805) and the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables was BD 238,818 (2014: BD 245,424). Any difference between the amounts actually collected in future periods and the
amounts expected will be recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Impairment of inventories
Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become old or obsolete, an estimate is made of their
net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not
individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the inventory type and
the degree of ageing or obsolescence, based on historical selling prices.
At the reporting date, gross food and beverage inventories were BD 3,227,533 (2014: BD 2,512,052), maintenance  stores were BD
97,188 (2014: BD 96,376) and general stores BD 156,658 (2014: BD 101,864), with an allowance for old and obsolete inventories of BD
293,728 (2014: BD 288,728). Any difference between the amounts actually realised in future periods and the amounts expected will be
recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Impairment of unquoted AFS equity investments
In determining any impairment for the unquoted AFS equity investments carried at cost, assumptions have been made regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.			
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7

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 				

				
Furniture,
			
Buildings on	fittings and
		
Freehold land
freehold land
office equipment
		
BD
BD
BD

				
Plant,
equipment
and motor vehicles
BD

Soft operating
equipment
BD

Cost:										
At 1 January 2015
12,371,761
54,075,974
14,977,924
9,034,628
458,420
Additions
406,845
1,971,511
152,007
183,848
Transfers
-   
890,236
(800)
255,320
-   
   
Write offs
-   
(2,378,575)
(4,629)
(50,384)
At 31 December 2015

12,778,606

54,559,146

15,124,502

9,423,412

458,420

Depreciation:								
At 1 January 2015
30,238,091
13,868,857
7,357,367
458,420
Charge for the year
2,138,983
372,429
543,547
   
Relating to write offs
-   
(2,378,575)
(4,629)
(50,384)
At 31 December 2015

-

29,998,499

14,236,657

7,850,530

458,420

Net carrying amount:								
At 31 December 2015
12,778,606
24,560,647
887,845
1,572,882
		

				
Furniture,
			
Buildings on	fittings and
		
Freehold land
freehold land
office equipment
		
BD
BD
BD

Plant,
equipment
and motor vehicles
BD

Soft operating
equipment
BD

Cost:										
At 1 January 2014
10,660,079
49,390,770
14,779,990
8,836,849
458,420
Additions
1,711,682
3,494,079
264,698
277,328
Transfers
-   
1,274,704
-   
62,488
-   
Disposals and write offs
-   
(83,579)
(66,764)
(142,037)
-   
At 31 December 2014

12,371,761

54,075,974

14,977,924

9,034,628

458,420

Depreciation:								
At 1 January 2014
28,400,783
13,500,571
7,016,061
458,420
Charge for the year
1,915,480
435,050
483,162
Relating to disposals and write offs
-   
(78,172)
(66,764)
(141,856)
-   
At 31 December 2014

-

30,238,091

13,868,857

7,357,367

458,420

Net carrying amount:								
At 31 December 2014
12,371,761
23,837,883
1,109,067
1,677,261
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8
INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE		
			
The Group has a 28.06% interest in Bahrain Family Leisure Company B.S.C. (BFLC). BFLC is
a public company registered in the Kingdom of Bahrain and primarily involved in operating
restaurants, providing services related to family entertainment, supply of amusement related
equipment and investing in businesses with similar objectives to those of BFLC.

The movements in the carrying value of the investment are as follows:
				

Capital workin-progress
BD

Total		
BD

										
1,948,162
92,866,869
4,619,756
7,333,967
(1,144,756)
-   
-   
(2,433,588)
5,423,162

		

2015

2014

		

BD

BD

Balance at 1 January

2,120,508

1,565,487

Share of (loss) profit during the year (note 26)

(299,093)

555,021

Carrying value

1,821,415

2,120,508

*Based on the approved management accounts of BFLC for the year ended 31 December
2015, the Group has recognised loss of BD 299,093 representing their 28.06% share (31
December 2014: profit of BD 555,021).

97,767,248

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group’s investment
								
in BFLC:
51,922,735
		
2015
2014
3,054,959
		
BD
BD
-   
(2,433,588)
Current assets
447,550
257,564
-

52,544,106

								
5,423,162
45,223,142

Non-current assets

6,431,870

7,690,354

Current liabilities

(333,670)

(331,646)

(53,577)

(58,027)

6,492,173

7,558,245

28.06%

28.06%

Carrying amount of the investment

1,821,415

2,120,508

Revenue

1,278,773

1,294,907

358,767

363,293

(1,066,074)

1,978,291

Group’s share of (loss) profit for the year

(299,093)

555,021

Fair value based on share price as of 31 December

1,171,600

1,171,600

Non-current liabilities
Equity		
Proportion of the Group’s ownership

Capital workin-progress
BD

Total		
BD

										
1,930,308
86,056,416
1,355,046
7,102,833
(1,337,192)
-   
-   
(292,380)
1,948,162

92,866,869

Group’s share of revenue for the year
Profit

Share price as of 31 December
0.116
0.116
								
49,375,835
Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not provided for, relating to BFLC,
2,833,692
amounted to nil (2014: nil).
-   
(286,792)
		
-

51,922,735

								
1,948,162
40,944,134

The associate had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 December 2015
(2014: none).
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9

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS				

		
2015
2014
		
BD
BD
Equity investments:
Quoted investments originally 			
        trading investments (at fair value) *
1,646,231
1,724,697
Quoted investments (at fair value)
   4,861,483
4,876,516
Unquoted investments (at cost less impairment)
586,066
586,066
		
		
7,093,780
7,187,279
		
The unquoted investments are carried at cost less impairment, as fair value cannot be reliably determined due to the unpredictable nature
of future cash flows. As of 31 December 2015, the cumulative impairment provision on unquoted investments amounted to BD 140,233
(2014: BD 140,233). Impairment provision provided during the year amounted to nil (2014: nil).
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company received a liquidation distribution letter on one of its fully impaired unquoted investment amounting to BD 125,713. Consequently, the Group has recorded the net proceeds to be received on the investment as “other
receivables” in the notes to the consolidated statement of financial position and was credited in the consolidated statement of income  as
“recovery of impaired unquoted investment”. In 2015, additional distribution of BD 10,792 was received by the Group.
The movement in the quoted available-for-sale investments for the year is as follows:			
		
2015
2014
		
BD
BD
Opening balance
Purcvhase during the year
Fair value gain on available-for-sale investments
Impairment
		
Closing balance (note 28)
		

6,601,213
141,594
(235,093)

3,854,535
2,354,941
543,297
(151,560)

6,507,714

6,601,213

* Quoted investments originally trading investments (at fair value) represented quoted investments that were held with the intention to
derive short-term gains. Following the amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7, “Reclassification of Financial Assets”, the Group reclassified
these held for trading equity investments to available-for-sale. The Group identified the investments eligible under the amendments for
which at 1 October 2008, it had a clear change of intent to hold for the foreseeable future rather than to exit or trade in the short term.
The change of intent was attributable to the current turmoil in the equity markets due to the credit and liquidity problems in the market.
Management believed that the market conditions at that time qualified for the definition of ‘rare circumstances’ under the revised IAS
39. The reclassifications were made with effect from 1 October 2008 at fair value at that date. The carrying value and the fair value of
the investments on 1 October 2008 when the reclassification was made, was BD 2,155,274. This became the deemed cost of the investments upon transfer. The remaining cost of reclassified investments is BD 1,153,072 as of 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: BD
1,153,072).
As at 31 December 2015 the carrying and fair value of reclassified investments is BD 1,646,231 (31 December 2014: BD 1,724,697). During the year, the Group has not recognised any fair value loss (31 December 2014: none) in the consolidated statement of income and
recognised a fair value loss of BD 78,466 (2014: gain of BD 289,233) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, on the
said investments. Had there been no reclassification the Group would have recognised a fair value loss of BD 78,466 (2014: gain of BD
289,233) in the consolidated statement of income.
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10

TRADING INVESTMENTS		

The movement in the trading investments for the year is as follows:
		
		
Opening balance
Sale of trading investments
Net movement of cash held for investment trading
Gain on trading investments
		
Closing balance (note 28)

2015
BD
595,219
-   
(44,824)
19,955
570,350

2014
BD
1,829,947
(1,503,755)
(21,108)
290,135
595,219

		
All trading investments comprise listed investments.			

11

INVENTORIES

		
		
Food and beverages
General stores
Maintenance stores
		
Allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventories
		
		

2015
BD
3,227,533
156,658
97,188

2014
BD
2,512,052
101,864
96,376

3,481,379
(293,728)

2,710,292
(288,728)

3,187,651

2,421,564

The movement in the provision for slow moving inventories is as follows:
		
2015
		
BD
At 1 January
288,728
Charge for the year (note 23)
5,000
		
At 31 December
293,728
		
			
12

2014
BD
230,798
57,930
288,728

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

		
		
Trade receivables
Trade receivables - related parties (note 26)
		
		
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables
		

2015
BD
1,295,382
261,229

2014
BD
1,917,428
147,377

1,556,611
(238,818)

2,064,805
(245,424)

Net trade receivables
Other receivables - related parties (note 26)
Advances and prepayments
Accrued interest receivable
Security deposits
Other receivables
		
		
		

1,317,793
312,212
309,573
102,634
31,497
526,922

1,819,381
209,498
212,633
140,188
201,670
454,711

2,600,631

3,038,081

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. Receivables relating to current guests are payable on departure. Receivables relating to other
operations and corporate guests are generally on 30 day terms. Other receivables are generally interest free with no fixed terms of repayANNUAL REPORT 2015
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ment.			
As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables at nominal value of BD 238,818 (2014: BD 245,424) were impaired.  Movements in the allowance for impairment of trade receivables were as follows:
		
		
At 1 January
(Reversal) charge for the year - net (note 23)
		
At 31 December
		
As at 31 December, the ageing of unimpaired trade receivables is as follows:
Neither				
past due
nor
31 – 60 days
impaired
BD
BD

			Total
		
BD
2015		
2014		

1,317,793
1,819,381

586,217
1,244,344

263,820
220,628

2015
BD
245,424
(6,606)

2014
BD
244,183
1,241

238,818

245,424

		
Past due but not impaired
61 – 90 days

91 – 120 days

>120 days

BD

BD

BD

165,501
117,633

50,937
64,264

251,318
172,512

Unimpaired receivables are expected, on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable.		
13

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

		
2015
		
BD
Cash on hand and at banks
4,092,438
Cash held for investment trading
343,579
Term deposits
17,569,903
		
		
22,005,920
		
			

2014
BD
2,259,913
195,974
20,020,339
22,476,226

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

		
		
Cash on hand and at banks (i)
Cash held for investment trading
		
		

2015
BD
3,942,600
343,579

2014
BD
2,065,171
195,974

4,286,179

2,261,145

(i)
Bank balances amounting to BD 149,838 (2014: BD 194, 742) representing unclaimed dividends have not been included in cash
and cash equivalents.
Interest bearing bank balances included in ‘cash at banks’ carry interest at the rates of 0.10% to 0.40% (2014: 0.10% to 0.40%). Cash
held for investment trading are amounts held by investment managers. Term deposits are made for varying periods of between six and
seven months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest or profit at their respective term deposit
rates. The interest rates on term deposits as at 31 December 2015 range between 1.00% to 1.75% (2014: 1.00% to 2.70%).
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14

SHARE CAPITAL

		
		
Authorised:
   200,000,000 (2014: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of BD 0.100 each
		
Issued and fully paid:
   173,605,435 (2014: 165,338,510) shares of  BD 0.100 each  
		

2015
BD

2014
BD

20,000,000

20,000,000

17,360,544

16,533,851

At the annual general meeting held on 10 March 2015, the shareholders approved the issue of 8,266,925 bonus shares (2014: nil) with a
nominal value of BD 826,693 (2014: nil) representing 5% of the issued and paid-up share capital before such bonus shares were issued.
The issued and paid-up share capital was increased by BD 826,693 (2014: nil).
15

RESERVES		

a)
Statutory reserve
The Bahrain Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s articles of association, requires 10% of the profit for the year to be transferred to a statutory reserve. The Company may resolve to discontinue such annual transfer when the reserve totals 50% of the paid up
share capital. The reserve is not distributable except in such circumstances as stipulated in the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group transferred BD 413,346 (2014: nil) and resolved to discontinue such transfer as the reserve
totalled 50% of the issued and paid up share capital.
b)
General reserve
The general reserve, which represents funds set aside for the purpose of future capital expenditure and to enhance the already strong
capital base of the Company, is distributable.
c)
Available-for-sale investments reserve
This reserve relates to fair value changes on available-for-sale investments through consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

16

DIVIDENDS AND BONUS SHARES

Dividends proposed and declared
During 2015, dividends of 40 fils per share, relating to 2014 and totaling BD 6,613,540 (2014: 40 fils per share, relating to 2013 and
totaling BD 6,613,540) were declared.
On 17 February 2016, the Board of Directors proposed a final cash dividend of 30 fils per share totaling BD 5,208,163 for the year 2015
(2014: 40 fils per share totaling BD 6,613,540 for the year 2014) and no bonus shares (2014: 8,266,930 shares with a nominal value BD
826,693 representing 5% of the issued and paid-up share capital before such bonus shares were issued). These appropriations are subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and other regulatory bodies.		
Dividend per share			
Dividend per share is calculated by dividing the proposed dividend for the year by the number of shares outstanding at the year-end as
follows:
		
		
Dividend for the year (in BD)
		
Shares in issue as at 1 January
Bonus shares issued during the year
		
Shares in issue as at 31 December
		
Dividend per share (in fils)
		

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

2015
BD
5,208,163

2014
BD
6,613,540

165,338,510
8,266,925

165,338,510
-

173,605,435

165,338,510

30

40
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EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS		
Movements in the provision recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:
		
		
Provision as at 1 January
Expense recognised in the consolidated statement of income (note 23)
End of service benefits paid
		
Provision as at 31 December
		

18

2015
BD
2,005,723
174,020
(193,977)

2014
BD
1,823,707
242,167
(60,151)

1,985,766

2,005,723

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES		

		
		
Trade payables - others
Trade payables - related parties (note 26)
		
Provision for charity reserve (note 18.1)
Accrued expenses
Payable to contractors
Staff bonus payable
Other payables
Government levy payable
Other payables - related parties (note 26)
		
		
		

2015
BD
1,876,789
70,202

2014
BD
1,334,850
150,644

1,946,991
1,885,889
1,382,530
1,582,027
786,091
527,940
177,978
16,807

1,485,494
1,720,260
1,296,413
1,012,395
1,059,438
490,025
210,729
16,807

8,306,253

7,291,561

Trade payables are generally non-interest bearing and payable within 60 days.			
Other payables are non-interest bearing and generally are payable within 60 days.			
				
18.1 Movements in the provision for charity reserve recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:
		
		
Provision as at 1 January
Amount provided during the year
Donations paid during the year
		
Provision as at 31 December
		

19

2014
BD
1,491,456
289,144
(60,340)

1,885,889

1,720,260

2015
BD
24,358,315
7,302,684
709,416

2014
BD
24,467,546
8,410,920
432,696

32,370,415

33,311,162

GROSS OPERATING REVENUE

		
		
Food and beverages
Rooms
Other operating departments
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2015
BD
1,720,260
235,823
(70,194)
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20

OPERATING COSTS

		
		
Food and beverages
Payroll and related costs (note 23)
Rooms		
Other operating departments
Other overhead expenses
		
		
21

2014
BD
10,875,502
5,617,148
854,083
45,039
1,985,060

19,275,130

19,376,832

2015
BD
393,448
147,423
123,446
65,430
51,751

2014
BD
363,080
117,858
92,814
59,299

781,498

633,051

2015
BD
1,087,202
205,000
47,277
40,017
19,800
19,739
16,438
99,983

2014
BD
1,110,794
217,500
53,777
22,482
41,460
19,970
24,495
81,766

1,535,456

1,572,244

OTHER INCOME

		
		
Management fees (note 26)
Liabilities no longer payable
Other operating income
Rental income
Foreign exchange gain (net)
		
		
22

2015
BD
10,789,704
5,563,991
810,767
59,887
2,050,781

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

		
		
Payroll and related costs (note 23)
Directors’ fees
Insurance expense
Professional fees
Municipal taxes
Registration expense
Printing and stationery
Miscellaneous expenses
		
		
		

23
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR		
The profit for the year is stated after charging:
		
		
Inventories recognised as expenses upon sale of food and beverages
		
Payroll and related costs:
Wages and salaries and other benefits
Employees’ end of service benefits (note 17)
Contributions to the Social Insurance Organisation:
- Bahrainis
- Non-Bahrainis
		
		

2015
BD
10,210,102

2014
BD
10,300,239

6,201,072
174,020

6,260,824
242,167

170,165
105,936

155,817
69,134

6,651,193

6,727,942

The payroll and related costs has been allocated in the consolidated statement of income as follows:		
Operating costs (note 20)
General and administration expenses (note 22)
		
		
(Reversal of) provision for doubtful debts - net (note 12)
		
Provision for slow moving inventories - net (note 11)
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5,563,991
1,087,202

5,617,148
1,110,794

6,651,193

6,727,942

(6,606)

1,241

5,000

57,930
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

		
2015
2014
		
BD
BD
Profit for the year – BD
9,197,089
11,276,592
		
Weighted average number of shares outstanding			
      (restated for bonus shares)
173,605,435
173,605,435
		
Basic and diluted earnings per share – fils
      (restated for bonus shares)  
53
65
		
No separate figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any financial instruments which may
have a dilutive effect.
25
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS
Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not provided for, relating to the Group, amounted to BD 11,502,205 (2014:
BD 4,878,239). This is mainly for the construction development of Gulf Residence Juffair, District Cooling System and SPA project.

26
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and entities controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Board of
Directors.			
				
Transactions with related parties during the year are as follows:
		

2015		

			
			
Management
		
Purchases
Sales
fee income
				(note 21)
		
BD
BD
BD
Major shareholders and their affiliates
Associate
Other related parties		

Share of				
Profit from			
an associate
(note 8)		
BD

2,010,756
-

575,644
37,334

393,448
-

(299,093)
-

		
2,010,756
			

612,978

393,448

(299,093)

Balances with related parties included in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:
							
		
2015		
			
		
Trade
Other
Trade
Other
		
receivables
receivables
Payables
payables
		BD
BD
BD
BD
Major shareholders and their affiliates		
251,495
312,212
70,202
16,807
Other related parties		
9,734
		
			

261,229

312,212

70,202

16,807

Outstanding balances arise in the normal course of business and are interest free and unsecured. The Group only creates an allowance for
impairment for related party balances where it is virtually certain that the debt will not be recovered. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Group has not recorded any impairment of amounts owed by related parties (2014:nil).				
				
Compensation of key management personnel												
Key management personnel are those persons having responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group.
The remuneration of directors and members of key management during the year was as follows:				
		
		
Short-term benefits - senior executives
Post-employment benefits - senior executives
Short-term benefits - directors
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Introduction
The Group manages risk through a process of ongoing identification and monitoring of the risks it faces. The Group is exposed to interest
rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk, market risk and reputational risk. 		
Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk strategies and principles.
Executive committee
The executive committee is responsible for evaluating and approving business and risk strategies, plans and policies of the Group.
Investment committee
The investment committee is responsible for mitigating market and liquidity risks pertaining to the Group’s investment activities by
optimising liquidity and maximising returns from the funds available to the Group.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include trade and other receivables, deposits, available-for-sale investments and trading investments.
The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.
The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of end of service benefits and provisions.		
				

		

2014

				
			
Management
Purchases
Sales
fee income
		
(note 21)
BD
BD
BD
1,070,400
1,070,400

Interest rate risk
Share of
Profit from
an associate
(note 8)
BD

386,635
167,924

363,080
-

555,021
-

554,559

363,080

555,021

							
		
2014
Trade
receivables
BD
140,766
6,611

Other
receivables
BD
209,498
-

Trade
payables
BD
150,644
-

Other
payables
BD
16,807
-

147,377

209,498

150,644

16,807

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments
will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest rates. The
sensitivity of the income is the effect of the assumed changes
in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, on the
Group’s profit for one year, based on the floating rate financial
assets held at 31 December 2015. The Group is not significantly
exposed to interest rate risk as it has fixed rate interest bearing
deposits with commercial banks.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss.

The Group is exposed to credit risk on its term deposits, cash
with banks, trade receivables, other receivables and security
deposits. The Group places its deposits and funds with banks
and investment managers having good credit rating. With
regard to trade receivables, the Group seeks to limit its credit risk
				
with respect to customers by setting credit limits for individual
				
												 customers and monitoring outstanding receivables on an ongoing basis.
				
2015
2014
BD
BD
The Group sells its products and provides its services to a large
990,259
904,891
number of individuals, companies and government agencies. Its
26,005
98,679
205,000
217,500
five largest customers account for 27% of outstanding trade
receivables at 31 December 2015 (2014: 25%).
1,221,264
1,221,070
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With respect to credit risk from the financial assets of the Group, which comprise bank balances, term deposits, trade receivables, other
receivables and security deposits, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.
Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same
geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s
performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location.
The distribution of the Group’s financial assets is as follows:		
		
2015		2014
Bahrain
BD

Others
BD

Bahrain
BD

Others
BD

Trade receivables
Other receivables
Security deposits
Cash and bank balances

1,258,117
526,922
31,497

59,676
-

1,731,553
454,711
201,670

87,828
-

- net of cash on hand

21,975,047

-

22,447,250

-

Geographic region

		
2015		2014

Industry sector
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Security deposits

Bahrain
BD

Others
BD

Bahrain
BD

Others
BD

8,307
-

1,309,486
526,922
31,497

12,559
-

1,806,822
454,711
201,670

Cash and bank balances					
- net of cash on hand
21,975,047
22,447,250
				
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk, is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in meeting its commitments.
The Group limits its liquidity risk by monitoring cash flows on an ongoing basis. The Group’s terms of sale require amounts to be paid
within 30 to 60 days of the date of sale or service. Trade payables are normally settled within 60 days of the date of purchase. The Group’s
financial liabilities as at 31 December 2015, based on contractual payment dates, amounted to BD 4,251,743 (2014: BD 3,215,450) and
would mature within 3 months (2014: same).
Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities
when revenue or expense are denominated in a different currency from the Group’s functional currency.
The Group’s activities are carried out substantially in Bahraini Dinars and therefore, the Group is not exposed to significant currency risk.
As the Bahraini Dinar is pegged to the US Dollar, balances in US Dollars are not considered to represent a significant currency risk. The
effect of 10% increase or decrease in exchange rates on balances in foreign currencies other than US Dollars is not expected to be material.
Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.
The Group controls market risk by monitoring investments and maintaining a diversified portfolio in order to limit exposure to movements
in prices and volatility arising in connection with financial instruments. Its two largest investments account for 58% (2014: 59%) of the
total quoted investments as of the date of consolidated statement of financial position.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the cumulative changes in fair value to reasonably possible changes in equity prices,
with all other variables held constant. 			
				
				
			
		
2015		2014
Change
Effect on
Effect on
Change
Effect on
Effect on
in equity
equity
profit
in equity
equity
profit
price
BD
BD
price
BD
BD
Available-for-sale investments 						

Quoted)
+10%

590,609

60,162

+10%

569,521

90,600

-10%

(475,900)

(174,871)

-10%

(547,579)

(112,542)

+10%

-

57,035

+10%

-

59,522

-10%

-

(57,035)

-10%

-   

Trading investments
  (59,522)

The Group also has unquoted investments carried at cost where the impact of changes in equity prices will only be reflected when the
investment is sold or deemed to be impaired, when the consolidated statement of income will be impacted. All of the Group’s quoted
investments are listed mainly in the Kingdom of Bahrain and GCC stock markets.		

Concentration of investment portfolio		
Concentration of investment portfolio arise when a number of investments are made in entities engaged in similar business activities,
or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would be affected by changes in economic, political
or other conditions. The Group manages this risk through diversification of investments in terms of investment concentration. The
concentration of the Group’s investment portfolio is as follows:		
		

2015

2014

		

BD

BD

7,664,130

7,782,498

Equities

			
Reputational risk		
The Group manages reputational risk through regular monitoring of operations, ensuring that customers’ feed back on the product and
services offered is regularly received and acted upon, mystery guest processes and other forms of customer satisfaction surveys.

Capital management		
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it through the payment of dividends and the issue of bonus shares
in light of changes in business conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014. Capital comprises equity of the Group and is measured at 31 December 2015 at BD 72,210,870
(31 December 2014: BD 69,485,727).
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Operational risk		
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to perform,
operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Group cannot expect
to eliminate all operational risks, but through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Group is able
to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education
and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit.

		

				
				
			
28
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS		
Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities.		
Financial assets consist of cash and bank balances, term deposits, trade and other receivables and investments. Financial liabilities consist
of trade and other payables.		
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts are reasonable approximations of fair values:

2014

2015

Carrying		
Carrying
amount

Fair value

amount

Fair Value

BD

BD

BD

BD

6,507,714

6,507,714

6,601,213

6,601,213

570,350

570,350

595,219

595,219

Financial assets:
Quoted available-for-sale investments (note 9)
Trading investments (note 10)

The Group assessed that cash and bank balances, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.		
Fair values of quoted available-for-sale investments and trading investments are based on price quotations at the reporting date.
			
		

Fair value hierarchy		
All available for sale investments valued at fair value and trading investments were valued under Level 1 fair value hierarchy, there were
no financial instruments which were fair valued under Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy.		
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The Group held the following Level 1 financial instruments measured at fair value (equity instruments):
2015

2014

BD

BD

Financial assets measured at fair value		
Available-for-sale equity securities (note 9)
Trading investments (note 10)

6,507,714

6,601,213

570,350

595,219

7,078,064

7,196,432

There were no transfers between levels during the current or prior years.		
Unquoted investments are carried at cost less impairment and are not included in the above table.

29

SEGMENT INFORMATION		

For management purposes, the Group is organised into four main business segments:		
Hotel operations
		

- Hotel room and rental and management of executive apartments
and offices and provisioning of automatic laundry services.

Food and beverage
- Retail sale of food and beverages and convention operations.		
			
Commercial activities
- Import, export and sale of kitchen and household equipment
		
and interior decorations.
Investments and
- Investment activities of the Group.
other activities		
The operations of Gulf Brands International and the retail sales of food and beverages of the Gulf Hotel and the convention operations of
the Gulf Convention Center have been aggregated for segmental reporting.
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss which in certain respects, as explained
in the table below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.
Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s-length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.
Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, inventories and
accounts receivable. Whilst the majority of the assets can be directly attributed to individual business segments, the carrying amounts of
certain assets used jointly by two or more segments are allocated to the segments on a reasonable basis.
Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist primarily of trade and other payables.
The Group operates in the Kingdom of Bahrain, hence geographical information is not required.			
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

													
			

Hotel room operations			Food and beverage							

Year ended 31 December

2015

2014

2015

2014

BD

BD

BD

BD

																				
Gross operating revenue

7,951,895

8,788,969

24,358,315

24,467,546

Gross operating costs

(3,816,547)

(3,433,723)

(15,416,852)

(15,911,173)

Gross operating profit

4,135,348

5,355,246

8,941,463

8,556,373

Investment (loss) income

-

-

-

-

Interest income

-

-

2,522

1,647

209,126

227,269

52,608

42,693

(1,954,065)

(1,822,560)

(1,099,802)

(1,009,876)

-

-

-

-

(13,633)

(60,471)

(27,801)

(30,235)

2, 376,776

3,699,484

7,868,990

7,560,602

2015

2014

2015

2014

BD

BD

BD

BD

Other income
Depreciation
Charity reserve expense
Other expenses

Segment profit (loss) for the year

																				
Total assets

Total liabilities

44,659,494

42,539,303

28,176,380

26,032,032

5,482,480

5,499,081

4,795,051

3,758,233

							
Capital expenditure

4,889,311

4,735,222

2,444,656

2,367,611

																				

																				
Inter segment transactions between hotel room operations and commercial activities amounting to BD 69,074 (2014: BD 144,142)

have been eliminated during the year.																											

Significantly all of the sales and profit of the Group are earned in the Kingdom of Bahrain from the above business segments.																			
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							Commercial activities		Investment and other activities

Consolidated

2015

2014

2015

2014

2015

2014

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

60,205

54,647

-

-

32,370,415

33,311,162

(41,731)

(31,936)

-

-

(19,275,130)

(19,376,832)

18,474

22,711

-

-

13,095,285

13,934,330

-

-

(95,160)

1,083,257

(95,160)

1,083,257

-

-

239,182

319,387

241,704

321,034

1,530

9

518,234

363,080

781,498

633,051

(1,092)

(1,256)

-

-

(3,054,959)

(2,833,692)

-

-

(235,823)

(289,144)

(235,823)

(289,144)

(39,604)

(40,085)

(1,454,418)

(1,441,453)

(1,535,456)

(1,572,244)

(20,692)

(18,621)

(1,027,985)

35,127

9,197,089

11,276,592

2015

2014

2015

2014

2015

2014

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

BD

66,521

112,696

9,600,494

10,098,980

82,502,889

78,783,011

14,488

39,970

-

-

10,292,019

9,297,284

-

-

7,333,967

7,102,833

																				

																				

							
-

-
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION										

a)
The names and nationalities of the major shareholders, holding more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company and
the number of shares held by them are as follows:									

				

2015 				2014
No. of shares

%		

No. of shares		

%

Name

Nationality

Gulf Air B.S.C.

Bahraini

52,325,756

30.14%

49,834,054

30.14%

Family Investment Company W.L.L.

Bahraini

22,122,507

12.74%

21,069,055

12.74%

Yousif Khalil Almoayyed & Sons

Bahraini

12,574,297

7.24%

11,975,521

7.24%

Social Insurance Organisation
    (Pension) Civil and Military
Bahraini
9,404,058
5.42%
8,954,996
5.42%
				
The Group has only one class of shares and the holders of these shares have equal voting rights.		
b)

Distribution of share capital is as follows

												% of total
									No. of			outstanding
Category					No. of shares		shareholders		share capital
As of 31 December 2015:											
Less than 1%

50,653,748

741

29.18%

1% up to less than 5%

26,525,069

7

15.28%

5% up to less than 10%

21,978,355

2

12.66%

10% up to less than 20%

22,122,507

1

12.74%

20% up to less than 50%

52,325,756

1

30.14%

173,605,435

752

100.00%

As of 31 December 2014:				
Less than 1%						

48

52,191,907

741

31.57%

1% up to less than 5%

21,311,725

7

12.89%

5% up to less than 10%

20,931,769

2

12.66%

10% up to less than 20%

21,069,055

1

12.74%

20% up to less than 50%

49,834,054

1

30.14%

165,338,510

752
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION (continued)						
The details of the nationality of the shareholders and the percentage holding of the total outstanding share capital is as follows:
			

2015

					2014

			
% of total			
Nationality

% of total

No. of

No. of

outstanding

No. of

No. of

outstanding

shares

shareholders

share capital

shares

shareholders

share capital

												
Bahraini

168,335,112

721

96.964%

160,332,868

722

96.972%

Egyptian

13,109

1

0.008%

12,485

1

0.008%

UAE

926,901

4

0.534%

911,994

5

0.552%

Indian

110,586

3

0.064%

107,226

3

0.065%

4,276

1

0.002%

4,073

1

0.002%

2,446,500

3

1.409%

2,330,000

3

1.409%

Jordanian
Kuwaiti
Omani

3,474

1

0.002%

3,309

1

0.002%

Qatari

107,731

3

0.062%

102,602

3

0.062%

Saudi

1,649,192

12

0.950%

1,493,274

11

0.903%

8,554

3

0.005%

40,679

2

0.025%

173,605,435

752

100.000%

165,338,510

752

100.000%

Others

							
The details of the total ownership interest held by the directors are as follows:
					31 December 2015			

31 December 2014

		
% of total		
Director

Farouk Yousuf Almoayyed
Fawzi Ahmed Ali Kanoo
Khalid Mohamed Kanoo
Mohamed Husain Yateem
Mohamed Jassim Buzizi

% of total

No. of

outstanding

No. of

outstanding		

shares

share capital

shares

share capital

2,146,889

1.237%

2,044,657

1.237%

174,341

0.100%

162,135

0.098%

128,579

0.074%

122,457

0.074%

1,565,767

0.902%

1,444,920

0.874%

407,381

0.235%

387,982

0.235%

The details of the total ownership interest held by the directors along with the entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by them are as follows:				
									

2015		

Number of shares									102,488,086

2014
97,510,195

Percentage of holdings								59.04%
58.98%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES		
(i) Board, Board Members and Management		
Board and Directors’ Responsibilities
The Board of Directors is accountable to shareholders for the proper and prudent investment and preservation of shareholder interests.
The Board’s role and responsibilities include but not limited to:
- Monitoring the overall business performance,
- Monitoring management performance and succession plan for senior management,
- Monitoring conflicts of interest and preventing abusive related party transactions,
- Accurate preparation of the end of year financial statements,
- Convening and preparing the Shareholders meeting,
- Recommend dividend payable to shareholders and ensure its execution,
- Adapt, implement and monitor compliance with the Company’s code of ethics,
- Review the company’s objectives and policies relating to social responsibilities,
- Select, interview and appoint Chief Executive Officer and other selected members of the executive management.		
			
In this respect, the Directors remain individually and collectively responsible for performing all Board of Director’s tasks.
Material transactions requiring Board approval 		
The following material transactions require board review, evaluation and approval:		
-

The Company strategy,		
The Annual Budget,		
Major resource allocations and capital investments,		
Management responsibilities and training, development and succession plan for Senior Management.		

The Board of Directors consist of 8 members as of 31 December 2015 (2014: 8 members).
The Board has been elected in March 2015 for a period of 3 years.
														
The following table summarises the information about the profession, business title, experience in years, start date
and the qualifications of the current Board members;
																										
Name of Board Member			Profession					Business Title					
																	
														
Mr. Farouk Yousuf Almoayyed		Businessman					Chairman					
																										

Mr. Mohamed Husain Yateem 		Businessman					Director						

Mr. Khalid Mohamed Kanoo 		Businessman					Director						

Mr. Fawzi Ahmed Kanoo 			Businessman					Director						
																										

Mr. Maher Al Musallam			
Acting Chief Exective Officer Gulf Air			
Director						
																										
																										
Mr. Mohamed Jassim Buzizi 		
Ex MD and Businessman.		
					Consultant in Hospitality Industry			Director						
																										

Mr. Jassim Abdulaal 			Chartered Accountant				Director						

Mr. Aqeel Raees				
Chief Executive Officer - GHG			
Director						
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(i) Board, Board Members and Management (continued)					

Election system of directors and termination process		
Election / re-election of Board members take place every three years at the meeting of the Shareholders.		
Termination of a Board member’s mandate usually occurs by dismissal at the meeting of the Shareholders or by the member’s resignation
from the Board of Directors.		
Directors trading of Company shares		
During 2015 two of our Directors purchased 54,601 shares in GHG  (2014: there were no trading in shares by any of the directors).
Code of conduct and procedures adopted by the Board for monitoring compliance		
The Board and the Company’s employees are expected to maintain the highest level of corporate ethics and personal behavior. The
Company has established a Code of Conduct which provides an ethical and legal framework for all employees in the conduct of its
business. The Code of Conduct defines how the Company relates to its employees, shareholders and the community in which the
Company operates.
The Board of Directors has adopted the Gulf Hotels Group Code of Business Conduct and a Company Whistleblower policy to monitor
compliance with company ethics.		
				
				
			

																										
					Executive / non executive		Experience
																	Independent / non independent»		in years		Start date
Qualification

					Non Executive / Non Independent		52		
1974		
Mechanical Engineer from Loughborough 		
																										Engineering College, England

						Non Executive / Non Independent		44		

1991		

Masters in Business Administration

						Non Executive / Non Independent		46		

1998		

Bachelor of Arts

						Non Executive / Non Independent
45		
1991		
																										

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration,
South West Texas State University, U.S.A.

						
Non Executive / Non Independent		
41		 2014		
Licensed Pilot and Alumni of General
																										Management program from Harvard
																										Business School, U.S.A.

						Non Executive / Independent		48		
2007		
College Diploma in Catering 			
																										and Hotel Management, United Kingdom

						Non Executive / Independent		28		

2010		

Member Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales (ICAEW)

						
Executive / Non Independent		
41		 2014		
College of Diploma in Catering and Hotel
																										Management from Brighton Technical College
																										in London - England
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31
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES (continued)		
(i) Board, Board Members and Management (continued)
The following board members had directorship of other boards:
Name of board member			

Number of Directorships in Listed Companies

Mr. Farouk Yousuf Almoayyed			
4
Mr. Mohamed Husain Yateem 			
Mr. Khalid Mohamed Kanoo 			
1
Mr. Fawzi Ahmed Kanoo 				
2
Mr. Maher Al Musallam				
Mr. Mohamed Jassim Buzizi 			
Mr. Jassim Abdulaal 				
1
Mr. Aqeel Raees					1
			
The Group should hold a minimum of 4 Board meetings during each year. During the year ended 31 December 2015, 6 Board meetings
were held. The following table summarises the information about Board of Directors meeting dates and attendance of directors at each
meeting;		
Present
11-Jan-15 18-Feb-15 15-Apr-15
7-Oct-15 20-Oct-15
2-Dec-15
Mr. Farouk Yousuf Almoayyed
a
a
a
a
a
a
Mr. Mohamed Husain Yateem
a
a
a
x
x
x
Mr. Khalid Mohamed Kanoo
a
a
a
a
a
a
Mr. Fawzi Ahmed Kanoo
a
a
a
x
a
a
Mr. Maher Al Musallam
a
a
a
a
x
x
Mr. Mohamed Jassim Buzizi
a
a
a
a
a
a
Mr. Jassim Abdulaal
a
a
a
a
a
a
Mr. Aqeel Raees
x
a
a
a
a
a
Remuneration Policy
Total remuneration paid to the Board during the year amounted to BD 205,000 as basic fee (2014: BD  217,500).
										

The following table summarises the information about the profession, business title, experience in years and the qualifications of each
of the Executive Management;
										
Name of Executive Member		Designation					Profession						
											
Mr Aqeel Raees				
Chief Executive Officer and Director			
Administration						
																							

Mr Garfield Jones				Deputy Chief Executive Officer 			Administration						

Mr Suresh Surana				Chief Financial Officer 				Finance							

Mr Marc Reissinger			Director of Operations				Operations						
																							
Mr Shaheed Elaiwi				

Director of Finance and Board Secretary		

Finance							

Mr Lloyd Fernandez			Techincal Services Director				Engineering						
Ms Rochelle Penaflor			

Director of Revenue,Distribution and Optimsation

Revenue Mangement					

Mr Shuvendu Bakshi			Director of Projects				Architect							
																							

Mr Mahmoud Abd El Monem		
Director of Human Resources & Development		
Human Resources						
																							

Mr Abdel Rahim Abu Omar			
General Manager - Gulf Hotel			
Administration						
																							

Mr Abdulla Siddiq Al-Awadi
Hotel Manager
Administration
																							

Mr Ron Peters				General Manager					Administration						
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES (continued)

(ii) Committees
The following table summarises the information about Board Committees, their members and objectives:			
Board Committee

Objective			

Member			

Executive / non executive		

									
Executive Committee

Independent / non independent

Reviews, approves and directs

Mr. Mohamed Husain Yateem

Non Executive / Non Independent

the Executive Management on

Mr. Fawzi Kanoo

Non Executive / Non Independent

matters raised by the Board of

Mr. Maher Al Musallam

Non Executive / Non Independent

Directors such as various

Mr. Mohamed J. Buzizi

Non Executive / Independent

policies, business plans.

Mr. Aqeel Raees

Executive / Non Independent

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 5 Executive Committee meetings were held. The following table summarises the information
about committee meeting dates and attendance of directors at each meeting:							
Date			

2-Feb-15		30-Mar-15

15-Jul-15

21-Sep-15

25-Nov-15

Mr. Mohamed Husain Yateem

a		

a		

a

a

Mr. Fawzi Kanoo			

x		 x		 a		

a

a

Mr. Maher Al Musallam		

a		

a		

a		

x

a

Mr. Mohamed J. Buzizi		

a		

a		

a		

x

a

Mr. Aqeel Raees			

a		

a		

a		

a

a

a		

The  remuneration paid to Executive Committee members during 2015 is BD 8,400 (2014: BD 7,600).

						Business Title

Experience in years

Qualification

						
CEO and Director		
41		
College Diploma in Catering and Hotel Management
																							from Brighton Technical College in London – England

						DCEO			34		HCIMA Part B Professional qualification

							CFO			36		Commerce Graduate & Chartered Accountant From
India (ICAI)

						DOO			31		Degree with Hotel School in Strausberg in1983.
																							MBA in hospitality with Glion institute of Higher Education in Switzerland

							

DFBS			

24		

Masters Degree in Commerce from Bhopal University

						TSD			42		Diploma in Electrical Engineering

					

DRDO			

17		

Bachelor of Science in Tourism from University of the Philippines

							DOP			25		Bachelor of Architecture from University of Kolkata, India.
																							PMP from Project Management Institute, Pennsylvania, USA

						
DHRD			
30		
BC of Accounting & Business Administration,
																							Helwan University, Cairo, Egypt

						
GM-GH			
34		
Chemistry and Business Management from University of Jordan.
																							Hospitality Management Course from Cornell University - U.S.A.

		

HM-GH
30
Diploma in Catering, (with credit) & City Guilds – London Institute Diploma,
																							Major in Computer Programming.

						GM-GBI			36		GCSE 5 MBA Higher W-set level 2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES (continued)

Audit Committee Reviews the internal audit program and internal control
system, considers major findings of internal audit
reviews, investigations and managements response.
Ensures coordination among the internal
and external auditors.

Mr. Jassim Abdulaal

Non Executive/ Independent		

Mr. Khalid Kanoo

Non Executive/ Non Independent

The Group should hold a minimum of 4 Audit committee meetings during each year. During the year ended 31 December 2015, 4 Audit
committee meetings were held. The following table summarises the information about committee meeting dates and attendance of
directors at each meeting;
			17-Feb-15
14-Apr-15
14-May-15
15-Jul-15
19-Oct-15
Mr. Jassim Abdulaal
a		 a		 a		 a
a		
Mr. Khalid Kanoo		
a		 a		 a		 a
a

The  remuneration paid to Audit committee members during 2015 is BD 4,000 (2014: BD 4,000).
										
Nomination and Remuneration Committee										
Identify persons qualified to become members of the Board of Directors and Senior Executive Management of the Company, with the
exception of the appointment of internal auditors. Determining the appropriate size and composition of the Board and committees of the
Board. Making recommendations to the Board on the removal and appointment of directors.
Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Executive Management and regularly reviewing the plan.
Review, recommend and determine remuneration and incentive policies for the Board of Directors and Senior Executive Management,
having regard to prevailing market rates for similar roles and making them as attractive so as to retain and attract quality people to run
the Company successfully.
		
		
		
Mr. Farouk Yousuf Almoayyed			
Non Executive / Non Independent
		
Mr. Mohamed J. Buzizi				
Non Executive / Independent
		
Mr. Jassim Abdulaal				
Non Executive / Independent
		Mr. Aqeel Raees					Executive / Non Independent
The Group should hold a minimum of 2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings during each year. During the year ended 31
December 2015, 2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings were held. The following table summarises the information about
committee meeting dates and attendance of directors at each meeting;								
							
						25-Feb-15		9-Nov-15		
Mr. Farouk Yousuf Almoayyed			
a			 a		
Mr. Mohamed J. Buzizi				
a		
a		
Mr. Jassim Abdulaal				
a			 a		
Mr. Aqeel Raees					a		
a		
The  remuneration paid to Nomination and  Remuneration  Committee members during 2015 is BD 3,200 (2014: BD 2,800).
													
Corporate Governance Committee
Corporate governance committee is an internal system that encompasses polices, processes, people,
and which makes sure the needs of shareholders and other stakeholders are met in full. This will be accomplished by directing and
controlling managing activities using good business practices, objectivity, accountability and integrity. Corporate Governance Committee
implements Corporate Culture of the organization, commitment of the board and senior management towards the corporate governance
framework and approach of company to adhere to the code as integrity program rather than as compliance program.
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Mr. Farouk Yousuf Almoayyed			
Mr. Mohamed J. Buzizi				
Mr. Jassim Abdulaal				
Mr. Aqeel Raees					
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Non Executive / Non Independent
Non Executive / Independent
Non Executive / Independent
Executive / Non Independent
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES (continued)

(ii) Committees (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2015, 2 Corporate Governance Committee meetings were held. The following table summarises the
information about committee meeting dates and attendance of directors at each meeting;
						25-Feb-15		9-Nov-15		
Mr. Farouk Yousuf Almoayyed			
a			 a		
Mr. Mohamed J. Buzizi				
a		
a		
Mr. Jassim Abdulaal				
a			 a		
Mr. Aqeel Raees					a		
a		
The  remuneration paid to Corporate Governance Committee members during 2015 is BD 3,200 (2014: 2,800).
Investment Committee
Investment committee is established by the Board to provide guidelines, supervision and control over investment activity, so the return
from the investment activity could be maximized while covering the risk appetite. Committee shall assist the board of Gulf Hotels Group
in managing investment activity of the company and is charged with:
- Reviewing investment policies and strategies
- Overseeing the investment activity of the company
- Periodic review of investment portfolio
- Critical appraisal of the investment portfolio
- Defining the investment universe of the company
- Providing foundation of the investment decisions
		
		
		

Mr. Farouk Yousuf Almoayyed			
Mr. Mohamed Husain Yateem			
Mr. Aqeel Raees					

Non Executive / Non Independent
Non Executive / Non Independent
Executive / Non Independent

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 2 Investment Committee meetings was held. The following table summarises the information
about committee meeting dates and attendance of directors at each meeting:							
								
						25-Feb-15		9-Nov-15
Mr. Farouk Yousuf Almoayyed			
a
a
Mr. Mohamed Husain Yateem			
a			 a
Mr. Aqeel Raees					a			 a
The  remuneration paid to Investment  Committee members during 2015 is BD 2,400 (2014: BD 1,600).

(iii) Corporate Governance
		
Corporate governance code											
The Board and the Company’s employees are expected to maintain the highest level of corporate ethics and personal behavior. The
Company has established a Code of Conduct which provides an ethical and legal framework for all employees in the conduct of its
business. The Code of Conduct defines how the Company relates to its employees, shareholders and the community in which the
Company operates. The Board of Directors has adopted the code of Business Conduct and a Company Whistleblower policy to monitor
compliance with company ethics. 												
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement (continued)
At 31 December 2015
31
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES (continued)
						
(iii) Corporate Governance (continued)											
				
Changes to the Group’s corporate governance guidelines								
None.														

Compliance with the corporate governance code										
The Board of Directors has adopted the Corporate Governance Code and a Company Whistleblower policy to monitor compliance with
company ethics.
The Code of Conduct provides clear directions on conducting business internationally, interacting with governments, communities,
business partners and general workplace behavior having regard to the best practice corporate governance models. The Code of Conduct
sets out a behavioral framework for all employees in the context of a wide range of ethical and legal issues. The Code of Conduct will be
published in the ‘Corporate Governance’ section of the Company’s website.							
									
Conflict of interest: 													
In 2015 and 2014, no instances of conflict of interest have arisen. In the instance of a conflict of interest arising a result of any business
transaction or any type of resolution to be taken, the concerned Board member shall refrain from participating at the discussion of such
transaction or resolution to be taken. In this respect, GHG’s Board members usually inform the Board of a potential conflict of interest
prior to the discussion of any transaction or resolution. The concerned Board member(s)  also refrain from voting in any instance where  a
conflict of interest shall arise.

Evaluation of Board and Chairman Performance										
This is discussed in the Annual General Meeting and will also be taken up as part of Corporate Governance Code.		
CEO Performance													
This is discussed in the Board Meeting and also taken up in the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as part of Corporate Governance
Code.														
Means of communication with shareholders and investors									
The Company is committed to providing relevant and timely information to its shareholders in accordance with its continuous disclosure
obligations under the Corporate Governance Code.
Information is communicated to shareholders through the distribution of the Company’s annual report and other communications. All
releases are posted on the Company’s website and released to the shareholders in a timely manner.
The Company Secretary is responsible for communications with the shareholders and ensuring that the Company meets its continuous
disclosure obligations.

Management of principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group
The Board as a whole and management are assessing the risk from time to time. Board of Directors discuss and take proper measures for
risks faced by the Group.
Review of internal control processes and procedures
The Review of Internal control process and procedures is performed regularly by the Company’s internal auditors to ensure efficiency.
														
32

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY											

The Group discharges its social responsibilities through corporate donations and sponsorships and aiming at social sustainable development
and relief.														
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Group Profile
The Gulf Hotel, which opened in 1969 as Bahrain’s
first five star hotel, is renowned for being the
pioneer in luxurious hospitality. The Gulf Hotel has
maintained its position as the leading 5 star hotel in
Bahrain, selling the highest number of rooms in the 5 star
market and has developed an exceptional reputation for
providing excellent service while catering for both business &
leisure travelers alike.
The hotel consists of 361 beautifully furnished, spacious rooms and suites,
with panoramic views of Bahrain’s capital’s city, Manama. The Gulf Hotel’s
facilities also include state-of-the-art meeting rooms that are equipped with the
latest in technology, a 2,200 seat convention centre, a lagoon style swimming pool and
children’s pool set amongst landscaped gardens, and exclusive gymnasium.
The Gulf Hotel enjoys an envious reputation for delivering exceptional quality dining options,
with a range of award winning fine dining restaurants and lounges, which are highly regarded as
being among the best in Bahrain and the region:
•

Al Waha Restaurant, offering extensive international buffet options

•

China Garden Restaurant, voted Bahrain’s best Chinese restaurant for the past 3 years

•

Zahle, with sumptuous Lebanese food, live entertainment and traditional belly dancer

•

La Pergola, Bahrain’s most famous Italian restaurant

•

Margarita Mexicana Restaurant, serving authentic Mexican dishes

•

Royal Thai Restaurant for the best Thai dishes in a beautiful Thai house surrounding                                             

•

Sato Japanese Restaurant, with sushi bar, Teppanyaki and Tatami rooms, voted Best Japanese in Bahrain 2013

•

Takht Jamsheed Restaurant, for the best Iranian kebabs in Bahrain

•

Fusions Restaurant, a stunning roof top location where east meets west

•

Rasoi by Vineet, Indian Restaurant

Other Gulf Hotel outlets include the famous Sherlock Holmes Restaurant, Typhoon, The Oak Lounge and Café Delices.
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Construction of the Gulf Convention Centre (GCC) commenced
in 1995, and within 2 years the GCC opened up its doors to
provide a 4,780 square meters of conference, meetings and exhibition space.
The Gulf Convention Centre’s main hall, Al-Dana, hosts up to 2,500 people for reception,
and 1,200 people in a banquet style set-up.
The excellent design of the Gulf Convention Centre has been developed to provide organizers
with the highest level of flexibility. The GCC is also equipped with built-in projection systems, direct
internet and ISDN video conferencing, wireless simultaneous translation facilities and multiple power and
telephone points.
The mezzanine Floor features four additional meeting rooms, along with a business centre. Each meeting room is equipped with the latest
in technology and furnished with polished wood boardroom tables and leather chairs. An exclusive VIP lounge is also available on the
ground floor, in addition to the Lulu suite which is located on the Mezzanine floor and can be used as a dressing room. In addition to all
that, the Exhibition hall which is located below Al-Dana hall is featured with a drive-in access and provides 2,500 square meters of floor
space with the capacity to fit over one hundred display booths.
The five-star catering and the exceptional service that The Gulf Hotel is known for, is a great addition to the GCC benefits which makes
it the ideal venue for international conferences and exhibitions, gala dinners, banqueting events, weddings, graduations and award
ceremonies.
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The Gulf Executive Residence opened in 2006, adding 97
premium luxury apartments and a total of 162 rooms to The
Gulf Hotel’s facilities. This led to the expansion of the Gulf Hotel’s
client base to include customers interested in long stay facilities whilst enjoying
the distinctively excellent service and benefits provided by the Gulf Hotel.
The Gulf Executive Residence features breathtaking views of Gudaibiya and Manama city, and
consists of fifteen floors offering residents the opportunity to choose between one, two and three
bedroom apartments.
All residents of the Gulf Executive Residence have access to a spectacular lagoon style swimming pool and children’s swimming pool, an
exclusive health club and squash courts. Additionally, residents may enjoy dining in over 15 food and beverage outlets which are available
at the Gulf Hotel.
Each apartment is beautifully decorated and furnished with all modern amenities and includes a fully equipped open-kitchen, modern
and contemporary living room and dining area. All apartments are fully serviced and guests benefit from 24 hour housekeeping, security
and room service.
Guests may also enjoy the facilities available at the shopping Arcade which is located on the ground floor of the Gulf Executive Residence
and includes Café Delices, a brand new café and pastry shop, laundry and dry cleaning services, a florist, men’s barber shop, gift shop
and boutiques.
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The Gulf Executive Offices is located adjacent to the Gulf Hotel in Manama, Bahrain and offers
7,000 square meters of prime office space, along with a 600 bay multi-storey car park. The Gulf
Executive Offices benefit from having a unique location in the heart of Manama, as well as easy
access to the main highways.
The Offices are located at the top four floors of the car park building, with each floor divided into six spacious business units that are
equipped with the latest in technology. This includes 24 hour security, CCTV cameras, high speed internet connection and individually
controlled central air conditioning.
The car park building is controlled by a state-of-art monitoring system, which is the first of its kind in Bahrain.
Occupants may also enjoy several other facilities, which make the Gulf Executive Offices one of the premier office venues in Bahrain. Long
term apartment rental options are available for employees at the adjacent Gulf Executive Residence, and short term visitor accommodation
is also available with corporate rates at the Gulf Hotel. Health Club memberships are also available at concessionary rates for the occupants
of the Gulf Executive Offices.
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The Gulf Hotel Laundry Services opened in 2014, built on the location of the Hotel’s
tennis courts, which is now featured on the roof the new laundry. The new stateof-the-art laundry provides the Gulf Hotel’s clients with an enhanced level of service
and accommodates greater volumes of business with a choice of laundry services for
both domestic and business customers, thereby providing a five star laundry service to many
organizations in Bahrain with unrivaled prices. Our team pays careful attention to every detail and
to the small but vital touches that make a big difference which all add up to an exceptional laundry service
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Opened in 2004, Ocean Paradise Resort has established itself as one of the leading resorts
in Zanzibar. Located on the picturesque northeast coast of Zanzibar Island, around 60
kilometers off the eastern coast of Tanzania, the resort is set within 65,000 square meters of
beautifully landscaped gardens, with statuesque palm trees, a sandy white beach and looking
out towards the stunning turquoise water of the Indian Ocean. The resort which comprises of 100
chalets designed in traditional African round house style with makuti roofs and large terraces, provides all
the modern amenities guests would expect at a five-star resort, including air conditioning, direct dial telephone, mini-bar, guest safe and
satellite television
Three restaurants and two bars are available onsite, as well as meeting facilities and a main conference room that can cater to up to 200
people. Ocean Paradise Resort also features the largest swimming pool in Zanzibar, with a stunning waterfall feature and facilities for
recreation and water sports.
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The K Hotel is a deluxe four-star hotel located in Juffair, one of the most dynamic areas in
Bahrain. The hotel opened in February 2011, is owned by Mokan WLL and managed by the
Gulf Hotels Group, offering the guests the same level and comfort of a five-star hotel but at
competitive four-star prices.
The K Hotel features 237 luxurious, contemporarily furnished rooms and suites, complete with all modern
amenities. All rooms and suites are equipped with air conditioning, a mini bar, an in-room safe, and large flat screen televisions.
Excellent meeting facilities are also available at The K Hotel, with flexible meeting rooms with audio visual equipment and meeting
support service. The K Hotel presents several meeting venues that can cater for up to 160 people.
The K Hotel’s facilities include a Health Club, Spa, Hair Salon, a rooftop Swimming pool and children’s pool. The gymnasium
features state of the art exercise equipment and multi-purpose exercise rooms, in addition to Jacuzzis, steam rooms, and saunas.
The K Hotel also offers its guests a selection of unique food and beverage outlets:
• Kolors restaurant, serving international and Asian dishes.
• Kenza Restaurant, offering a range of Arabic specialties
• The K lounge, with a Bistro/ Grill dining menu and live entertainment
• Champions Sports Lounge, featuring the largest range of championship belts in Bahrain.
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New in 2016
Asdal Gulf Inn, strategically located in the heart of the Seef business district, is spread over
four floors and houses 94 luxurious rooms and suites. Each of the spacious rooms are equipped
with chic marble bathrooms incorporating separate bathtub and shower plus all the amenities and
features that is expected from an international 4 star deluxe property.
The Hotel offers its guests 3 unique food and beverage outlets serving Italian and Lebanese cuisines along with an all-day dining outlet.
Asdal Gulf Inn also boasts modern facilities that cater to the business traveller including spacious meeting rooms and a boardroom
featuring the latest in modern technology that can accommodate up to 50 guests, contemporary business centre, a mini-gym, rooftop
swimming pool & Sauna and an underground car park.
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The construction of a 3,100 square meter spa facility which will be a great addition to the Gulf
Hotel’s leisure facilities is near completion and is expected to open in May 2016.
The Gulf Spa will include separate men’s and ladies treatment rooms, hammams, hydro and relaxation pools, experience showers,
ice baths and relaxation rooms, in addition to a ladies gym and exercise room and a rooftop relaxation terrace.
The Gulf Spa is located adjacent to the existing men’s health club and the swimming pool and will also include a health and juice
bar and a ladies hair and beauty salon.
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As part of a strategic alliance with Lona Real Estate B.S.C, the Gulf Hotels Group will
operate two buildings comprised of four-star luxury apartments in the ultramodern residential
development, Amwaj Waves. The Gulf Residence Amwaj project will feature a total of 173 spacious
apartments made up of 2 studio units, 42 one bedroom, 107 two bedroom and 18 three bedroom apartments, in addition to 4 luxurious
4 bedroom penthouses.
All apartments have been designed in a modern, contemporary style with a focus on quality and functionality. Each apartment has
spacious living and dining areas. Facilities will include an exquisitely landscaped swimming pool deck, fitness centre, an all-day brasserie
restaurant, a tapas restaurant and bar, cafes, shops, meeting and banquet rooms and ample parking space.
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Upcoming Changes
Plans are underway to construct a 108 unit serviced apartment facility in Juffair, construction is expected to commence in early 2016
and will take 22 months to complete.

The Gulf Executive Residence Juffair will be the third addition to the Gulf Residence chain of luxury serviced apartments and will
complement the growing residential demand in the area. The project will feature 108 deluxe serviced apartments of 1, 2 and 3
bedroom apartments together with food and beverage options and health and recreation facilities.
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Gulf Hotels Group launched its regional expansion plan with the acquisition of a plot of land in
Business Bay on the Dubai Creek for the construction of a new five-star hotel which is expected
to open end of 2018. Design work will be completed by first quarter of 2016 followed by a 24
month construction period.
The development will be on a waterfront site overlooking the Creek only 1.5 miles from Dubai Mall and facing the world’s tallest building,
Burj Khalifa. The property will feature 224 bedrooms, three fine-dining restaurants, a variety of function halls and meeting facilities, a spa
and fitness centre and other top class facilities including substantial car parking.
The central location of the hotel together with the proximity to some of Dubai’s major tourist destinations, makes it the ideal location for
both business and leisure clients.

68

GULF HOTELS GROUP B.S.C.

أضواء عىل أنشطة املجموعة يف

2015
The Year in Highlights
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The Year in Highlights 2015

٢٠١٥ إجتماع اجلمعية العامة العادية جملموعة فنادق اخلليج
Gulf Hotels Group Annual General Meeting 2015

توقيع إتفاقية مشروع نظام التبريد مع شركة
“”شابو البحرين
District Cooling System project signing ceremony
with Charilaos Apostolides Bahrain WLL (CHAPO)

توقيع إتفاقية إدارة صالون التجميل “سبا اخلليج” مع السيد
جوليانو أسمر
The Gulf Spa Salon agreement signing ceremony
with Mr. Juliano Asmar
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2015 ... أضواء على أنشطة اجملموعة في
”توقيع إتفاقية جتديد قاعة آوال مع شركة “كونترا
Awal Ballroom Renovation signing ceremony with KONTRA

”توقيع إتفاقية بناء أجنحة اخلليج الفاخرة – اجلفير مع شركة “أوليمبيك للمقاوالت
Gulf Executive Residence Juffair signing ceremony with “Olympic Contracting”

توقيع إتفاقية إدارة فندق “أسدال جلف إن” مع الشيخ عبدالعزيز اجلماز
و الشيخ ناصر اجلماز مالكي مجموعة أسدال
Asdal Gulf Inn management agreement signing ceremony with
Sh. Abdulaziz Al Jammaz and Sh. Nasser Al Jammaz owners
of Asdal Group onwers
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The Year in Highlights 2015

إدارة فندق اخلليج وإستالم جائزة أحسن تصميم ديكور خارجي مبناسبة إحتفاالت العيد الوطني ململكة البحرين
Appreciation Trophy recieved for parcipating the National Day display and decorations

2005-22000 فندق اخلليج يحصل على شهادة أيزو
Gulf Hotel receives the
ISO Certification 22000_2005

تقدمي درع العضوية الشرفية من جمعية رعاية مرضى
السكلر إلى مجموعة فنادق اخلليج
CEO Aqeel Raees received a plaque of Honorary
Membership to the Bahrain Society
for S.C.D. Patients Care
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2015 ... أضواء على أنشطة اجملموعة في

. مطعم راسوى باي فينيت-  مطعم تخت جمشير- مطعم زحله-  املطعم جاينا جاردن – املطعم مارجريتا ميكسيكانا2015 ”جوائز ”سيتي فاكت
Winners of the Citi Fact Awards 2015 - China Garden Restaurant, Margarita Mexicana Restaurant, Zahle Restaurant,
Takht Jamsheed Restaurant and Rasoi by Vineet Restaurant.

2015 “جوائز “تامي اوت – البحرين
 املطعم املكسيكي- مارجريتا ميكسيكانا
 املطعم الياباني- ساتو
 املطعم الهندي- راسوي باي فينيت
 املطعم اإليراني- تخت جمشيد
Winners of Time Out Bahrain Awards 2015.
Margarita Mexicana Restaurant, Sato Restaurant,
Rasoi by Vineet Restaurant
and Takht Jamsheed Restaurant

املؤمتر الصحفي لدخول فندق اخلليج ملوسوعة جينيس العاملية
عن أكبر “تيراميسو” في العالم
Guinness Book of World Records
Largest Tiramisu in the World Press Conference
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The Year in Highlights 2015

إحتفال مطعم راسوي باي فينيت مبرور عام على إفتتاحه
Rasoi by Vineet celebrates its first year anniversary

املؤمتر الصحفي مبناسبة إفتتاح أجنحة
اخلليج الفاخرة بعد اعمال التجديدات
Newly renovated Gulf Executive
Residence Press Conference

أكبر “تيراميسو” في العالم – موسوعة جينيس
العاملية
Guinness Book of World Records
Largest Tiramisu in the World presentation
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أضواء على أنشطة اجملموعة في 2015 ...

مجموعة فنادق اخلليج تدعم وحدة اخلدمات الطبية امللكية مبستشفى قوة دفاع البحرين
Gulf Hotels Group donation to Royal Medical Services - BDF Hospital

مجموعة فنادق اخلليج تدعم الهيئة العامة
حلماية الثروة البحرية و البيئة و احلياة الفطرية
Public Commission for Protecting Wild Life

مجموعة فنادق اخلليج تساهم في دعم املعهد
التأهيلي للتوحد
Rashida Tadayon and Rehabilitation Institute
for Autism donation
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مجموعة فنادق اخلليج تدعم جمعية متالزمة داون البحرينية
Bahrain Down Syndrome Cheque donation

مجموعة فنادق اخلليج تدعم جمعية تاريخ
وآثار البحرين
Bahrain Historical & Archeological
Society donation

مجموعة فنادق اخلليج تدعم اجلمعية البحرينية لإلعاقة
الذهنية والتوحد
Bahrain Association for Intellectual Disability & Autism
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أضواء على أنشطة اجملموعة في 2015 ...
مجموعة فنادق اخلليج تدعم جمعية البحرين اخليرية
Bahrain Philanthropic Society cheque donation

مجموعة فنادق اخلليج تدعم مركز احملرق للرعاية
اإلجتماعية
Muharraq Social Welfare Centre donation

مجموعة فنادق اخلليج تدعم جمعيةالسنابل
لرعاية األيتام
Al Sanabel Orphans Care Society Donation
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إحتفاالت عيد البحرين الوطني
Bahrain National Day and Festive Lunch

إحدى فعاليات سهرة ليالي اخلليج
Arabic performers at the Gulf Night Out

املهرجان املكسيكي
Mexican Festival celebration
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2015 ... أضواء على أنشطة اجملموعة في

حفل موظفي مجموعة فنادق اخلليج السنوي
Annual Staff Party

مشاركة فندق اخلليج في فعالية «يوم األرض
2015 »العاملي
The Gulf Hotel Bahrain supported the Earth
Hour 2015, lights off for one hour

إضاءة شجرة الكريسماس بردهة األندلس
Lighting of the Christmas Tree at the
Andalus Lounge
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فندق اخلليج في معرض األغذية والضيافة
The Gulf Hotel Bahrain participated in the Food and Hospitality Expo 2015

إحتفاالت كرنفال أكتوبر بقاعة اخلليج للمؤمترات
Oktoberfest celebrations at the Gulf
Convention Center

فندق اخلليج في سباق روتاري للطوافات
The Gulf Hotel Team during the Raft Race
2015 at the Al Bander Resort
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أضواء على أنشطة اجملموعة في 2015 ...

ملتقى الفنادق في إجتماع قطاع السياحة 2015
Tourism Sector meeting 2015

إفتتاح املؤمترالعاملي للمصارف اإلسالمية الثاني
والعشرون
Opening of the 22nd Annual World Islamic
Banking Conference (WIBC).

امللتقى السنوي التاسع لهيئة احملاسبة واملراجعة
لدول مجلس التعاون لدول اخلليج العربية
9th Annual Forum for GCC Accounting and Auditing
Organization
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2452 مؤمتر الروتاري الدولي
Rotary International District 2452 Conference

حفل نادي سكال البحرين السنوي بحضور سعادة
الشيخ خالد بن حمود آل خليفة الوكيل املساعد
للسياحة
SKAL Gala Dinner was attended by H.E. Sh.
Khalid bin Humood Al Khalifa

مؤمتر كرة القدم األسيوي بقاعة اخلليج للمؤمترات
Asian Football Congress 2015 held at the Gulf
Convention Center
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أضواء على أنشطة اجملموعة في 2015 ...
حفل تخرج اجلامعة امللكية للسيدات
Royal University for Women graduation

حفل تخرج مدرسة عبدالرحمن كانو
Abdul Rahman Kanoo School graduation

حفل تخرج جامعة اخلليج العربية
Arabian Gulf University
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 الدوليةAMA حفل تخرج جامعة
AMA International University graduation

حفل تخرج مدرسة إبن خلدون
Ibn Khuldoon School graduation

حفل تخرج مدرسة النسيم
Naseem School graduation
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